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Independent Auditor’'s Report.

To the Members of Dabur India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

Key audit matter

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Dabur India Limited (‘the
Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as
‘the Group’), and its joint venture, as listed in “Annexure
1", which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as
at 31 March 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, notes to the consolidated financial statements
and material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group, and its joint ventures, as at 31 March
2024, and their consolidated profit (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and
the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group and its joint venture in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment and based on the consideration of the reports
of the other auditors on separate financial statements of
the subsidiaries, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A. Revenue recognition

Refer note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Revenue of the Group consists primarily of
sale of products and is recognized when
control of products being sold is transferred
to customer and there is no unfulfilled

obligation.
Revenue is measured at fair value of the

consideration received or receivable and is
accounted for net of rebates and trade discounts.

Our key procedures included, but were not limited to, the following:

a) Assessed the appropriateness of the Group's revenue recognition
accounting policies, including those relating to rebates and trade
discounts by comparing with the applicable accounting standards;

b) Tested the design and operating effectiveness of the general IT control
environment and the manual controls for recognition of revenue,
calculation of discounts and rebates;

c) Performed test of details:

i. Tested, on a sample basis, sales transactions to the underlying
supporting documentation which includes goods dispatch notes and

shipping documents;

Ndo!
NS
RO
PO %

y 4



Corporate Overview Board & Management Reports Financial Statements

399

Integrated Annual Report 2023-24

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
The estimation of discounts, incentives and ii. Reviewed, on a sample basis, sales agreements and the underlying
rebates recognized, related to sales made contractual terms related to delivery of goods and rebates to assess
during the year, is material and considered the Group’s revenue recognition policies with reference to the
to be complex and subject to judgments. The requirements of the applicable accounting standards;

complexity mainly relates to various discounts,

ii
incentives and scheme offers, diverse range
of market presence and complex contractual
agreements/commercial terms across those
markets. Therefore, there is a risk of revenue
being misstated as a result of inaccurate
estimates of discounts and rebates.

The Group also focuses on revenue as a key
performance measure, which could create
an incentive for overstating revenue by

recognized in the correct accounting period; and

. Assessed the Group's process for recording of the accruals for discounts
and rebates as at the year-end for the prevailing incentive schemes;

iv. Tested, on a sample basis, discounts and rebates recorded during the
year to the relevant approvals and supporting documentation which
includes assessing the terms and conditions defined in the prevalent
schemes and customer contracts;

v. Obtained supporting documentation for a sample of credit notes
issued after the year end to determine whether the transaction was

influencing the computation of rebates and d) Compared the discount, incentives and rebates of the current year with
discounts. the prior year for variance/trend analysis and where relevant, conducted

Considering the materiality of amounts
involved, significant judgements related to
estimation of rebates and discounts, the same
has been considered as a key audit matter. | €

—

further inquiries and festing to corroborate the variances by considering
both internal and external benchmarks, overlaying our understanding of
industry practices and recent changes in economic environment; and

Assessed the appropriateness of the Group's description of the accounting
policy, disclosures related to discounts, incentives and rebates and whether
these are adequately presented in the consolidated financial statements.

B. Litigations and claims - provisions and | Our key procedures included, but not limited to, the following:

contingent liabilities

a) Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policies relating

Refer note 47A and 48 to the consolidated to provisions and contingent liability by comparing with the applicable

financial statements. accounting standards;

-

The Group is involved in direct, indirect tax and | b

Assessed the Group's process and the underlying controls for identification of

other litigations ('litigations’) that are pending the pending litigations and completeness for financial reporting and also for

with different statutory authorities.

monitoring of significant developments in relation fo such pending litigations;

The level of management judgement associated | c) Assessed the Group's assumptions and estimates in respect of litigations,

with determining the need for, and the quantum including the liabilities or provisions recognized or contingent liabilities
of, provisions for any liabilities arising from disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. This involved assessing
these litigations is considered to be high. the probability of an unfavorable outcome of a given proceeding and the
This judgement is dependent on a number of reliability of estimates of related amounts;

significant assumptions and assessments which | 4
involves interpreting the various applicable rules,
regulations, practices and considering precedents
in the various jurisdictions.

—

£

This matter is considered as a key audit matter,
in view of the uncerfainty regarding the outcome

- B iate;
of these litigations, the significance of the appropriaie

Performed substantive procedures on the underlying calculations
supporting the provisions recorded;

Assessed the management's conclusions through understanding relevant
judicial precedents in similar cases and the applicable rules and regulations;

f) Obtained legal opinions from the Group's external legal counsel, where

amounts involved and the subjectivity involved g) Engaged subject matter specialists to gain an understanding of the current

in management’s judgement as to whether the status of litigations and monitored changes in the disputes, if any, through
amount should be recognized as a provision discussions with the management and by reading external advice received
or only disclosed as contingent liability in the by the Group, where relevant, to validate management's conclusions; and
consolidated financial statements. h) Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s description of the accounting

policy, disclosures related to litigations and whether these are adequately
presented in the consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

C. Recoverability of goodwill pertaining to | Our key procedures included, but not limited to, the following:
step down subsidiary companies a) Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policies,
Refer note 7D to the consolidated financial including those relating to recognition, measurement and impairment of
statements. goodwill by comparing with the applicable accounting standards;

The consolidated financial statements of | b) Assessed the appropriateness of the significant assumptions as well as
the Group as at 31 March 2024 carries the Group's valuation model with the support of our valuation specialists.
goodwill amounting to ¥ 405.12 crores. This This included a discussion of the expected development of the business
goodwill was recorded on the acquisition of and results as well as of the underlying assumptions used with those
subsidiaries in earlier years. responsible for the planning process. The Group has engaged external
Gooduwill is tested for impairment annually at the experts to carry out impairment analysis. We also assessed the relevant
cash generating unit level, whereby the carrying skill set/experience of the management expert in respect of carrying out
amount of the cash generating unit (including the valuation;
goodwill) is compared with the recoverable | c) Compared the discount rate used (in particular the underlying parameters
amount of the cash generating unit. such as risk free rate, market risk premium and the beta factor) with the
The recoverable amount is determined on the publicly available information and also checked mathematical accuracy
basis of the value in use which is the present of the valuation model;
value of future cash flows of the cash generating | d) Evaluated the appropriateness of the weighted average cost of capital
unit. The present value is determined using considered in the valuation;
discounted cash flow model. The Group's e) Evaluated reasonability of projections for the purpose of arriving at future
approved annual plans forms the starting point cash flows.
which is then updated with assumptions of lon . . _—
P . P o f) Assessed the robustness of financial projections prepared by management
term growth rates. This also takes into account . o . . ) .
. by comparing projections for previous financial years with actual results
expectations about future market developments . L . . .
. . realized and considering recent changes in global economic environment
and other macroeconomic factors in the current . - )
. . o and analysed significant deviations, if any;
year on such assumptions. The discounting is
based on weighted average cost of capital of g) Performed a sensitivity analysis for reasonably possible changes in the
the cash generating unit. sales growth, discount rate applied and the long-term growth rate; and
The result of this evaluation is highly h) Assessed the appropriateness of the Group's description of the
dependent on management estimates, which accounting policy and disclosures related to goodwill and impairment
among others include, the expected business testing and whether these are adequately presented in the consolidated
and earnings forecasts for future years, the financial statements.
assumed longterm growth rates and the
discount rate used and is therefore subject to
considerable judgement.

D. Identification of Material Accounting | Our key procedures included, but not limited to, the following:
Policies a) Identification of entries treatment of which are permissible for various
Refer note 6A and 6B to the Consolidated means of treatment through evaluation in item specific context. The
Financial Statements. group’s treatment disclosed therefor under broad head of material
Following amendment of Ind AS 1, special accounting policies.
aftention was laid for identification of material
accounting policies.

Information other than the

Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6.

The Holding Company's
responsible for the other information.

Consolidated Financial

Board of Directors are
The other
information comprises the information included in

the Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on
Corporate  Governance, Business Responsibility and
Sustainability Report and the Directors’ Report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been approved by the Holding Company’s Board
of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors
are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its
joint venture in accordance with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are also
responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including
financial information considered necessary for the
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
Further, in terms of the provisions of the Act the respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group, and its joint venture company covered under
the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These

Auditor’s

financial statements have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible
for assessing the ability of the Group and of its joint
venture fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
companies included in the Group and of its joint venture.

Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

10.

1.

Our objectives are to obtfain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

B |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

B Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
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12.

13.

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding
Company has adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

B Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

B Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of
Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncerfainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the Group and its joint venture to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its joint venture
to cease to continue as a going concern;

B Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

B Obtain sufficientappropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information / financial statements of
the entities or business activities within the Group
and its joint venture, to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of financial statements of such entities included
in the consolidated financial statements, of which we
are the independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated
financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results
of our work; and (ii) fo evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
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including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

16.

The consolidated financial statements also include the
Group's share of net loss (including other comprehensive
income) of ¥ 0.51 crores for the year ended 31 March
2024, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, in respect of a joint venture, whose financial
information has not been audited by us. This financial
information is unaudited and have been furnished to us
by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of the aforesaid
joint ventures, is based solely on such unaudited
financial information. In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, this financial information is not material to
the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial
statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the
above matter with respect to our reliance on the financial
information certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our
audit and other financial information of the subsidiaries
incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

-
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We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept
so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditor;

The consolidated financial statements dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies and taken on record by the
Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies respectively, covered under
the Act, none of the directors of the Group companies
and its joint venture company, are disqualified as on
31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies
covered under the Act, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in ‘Annexure A' wherein we have expressed
an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose
the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and
its joint venture as detailed in Note 47A to the
consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
and joint venture company did not have any long-
term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses
as at 31 March 2024;

403

Integrated Annual Report 2023-24

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding
Company during the year ended 31 March 2024
and there were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the subsidiary companies
and joint venture company covered under the
Act, during the year ended 31 March 2024;

a. The respective managements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or securities premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company or its subsidiary
companies or its joint venture company to
or in any person or entity, including foreign
entities  (‘the intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Holding Company, or any such subsidiary
companies or ifs joint venture company
(‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The respective managements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us that, to the best
of their knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no
funds have been received by the Holding
Company or its subsidiary companies or its
joint venture company from any person or
entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Holding Company, or any such subsidiary
companies or its joint venture company shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any
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manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed
by us, as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the management representations
under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain
any material misstatement.

v. The final dividend paid by the Holding Company

during the year ended 31 March 2024 in respect
of such dividend declared for the previous year
is in accordance with section 123 of the Act,
as applicable. Further, the interim dividend
declared and paid by the Holding Company
during the year ended 31 March 2024 and until
the date of this audit report is in compliance with
section 123 of the Act. Further, as stated in note
46 to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company have proposed final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2024 which is subject
to the approval of the members at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared
is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as
applicable. Further, the subsidiary companies
and joint venture company have not declared
or paid any dividend during the year ended 31
March 2024.

i. Based on our examination which included test

checks, the Company and its two subsidiaries

Name CIN

Corporate Overview Board & Management Reports Financial Statements

incorporated in India have used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account
which, along with change log management,
have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the softwares. Further, during the course of our
audit, we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report
that the Holding Company incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act
have paid remuneration to its directors during the year
in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of section
143(11) of the Act based on the consideration of the
Order reports issued till date by us, of companies
included in the consolidated financial statements
and covered under the Act we report that there are
no qualifications or adverse remarks reported in the
respective Order reports of such companies. Further,
following is the company included in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
and covered under the Act that are audited by other
auditor for which the report under section 143(11) of
the Act of such company has not yet been issued by
the respective other auditor, as per information and
explanation given to us by the management in this
respect:

Subsidiary/ Associate/ Joint Venture

Forum 1 Aviation Private Limited | U62200DL2004PTC131655

Joint Venture

For G Basu & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 301174E

Subroto Lahiri
Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date : 02 May 2024

Membership No.: 051717
UDIN: 24051717BKFDXW8567
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Annexure 1

List of entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Subsidiaries: Revitalization Nigeria Limited, Healing Hair Laboratories

H & B Stores Limited, Badshah Masala Private Limited, International LLC, Dabur (UK) Limited, Dabur Consumer

Dermoviva Skin Essentials INC, Dabur Infernational Limited, ~ Care Private Limited, Dabur Tunisie, Dabur Pakistan Private

Dabur International FZE, Naturelle LLC, Dabur Egypt Limited, Limited, Dabur Pars, Dabur South Africa (PTY) Limited, D and
A Cosmetics Proprietary Limited, Atlanta Body and Health

African Consumer Care Limited, Dabur Nepal Private Limited,
Products Proprietary Limited, and Excel Investments FZC.

Asian Consumer Care Pakistan Private Limited, Dabur
Bangladesh Private Limited, Hobi Kozmetik, RA Pazarlama,
Dabur Lanka Private Limited, Namaste Laboratories LLC,
Urban Laboratories International LLC, Hair Rejuvenation &

Joint venture:
Forum 1 Aviation Private Limited.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Dabur India Limited on the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

Opinion

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of Dabur India Limited (‘the Holding Company’)
and its two domestic subsidiaries (the Holding Company
and its two domestic subsidiaries together referred to as
‘the Group'), and its joint venture as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, which
are companies covered under the Act, as at that date.

2. In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies covered under the
Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and such controls were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAI.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

3. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, are responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the
Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company's business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,

the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal
Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

4. The audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of a joint venture, which is a company
covered underthe Act, and reporting under Section 143(3)(i)
is exempted vide MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated
13 June 2017 read with corrigendum dated 14 July 2017.
Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on the infernal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, as
aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

5. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
includes obtaining an understanding of such internal
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and tfesting and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

6.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference

-
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to financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to

Consolidated Financial Statements

7.

A company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) perfain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that fransactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with

Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

8.

Place : New Delhi
Date :02 May 2024

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with
statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

reference to consolidated financial

For G Basu & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 301174E

Subroto Lahiri

Partner

Membership No: 051717
UDIN: 24051717BKFDXW8567
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(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 7A 2,560.94 2,237.62
b) Capital work-in-progress 7B 209.09 171.12
c) Investment property 7C 45.45 47.05
d) Goodwill 7D 405.12 405.25
e) Other intangible assets 7E 803.49 888.73
f) Intangible assets under development 7F 23.14 4.01
g) Investments in joint venture 8A 7.33 7.84
h) Financial assets
(i) Ofther investments 8B 5,258.76 5,520.95
(ii) Others 9 20.83 30.32
i) Deferred tax assets (net) 26 6.32 2.09
i) _Non-current tax assets (net) 10 4.45 4.49
k) Other non-current assets 11 98.14 85.87
Total non-current assets 9,443.06 9,405.41
Current assets
a) Inventories 12 1,946.97 2,024.20
b) Financial assets
(i) _Investments 13 1,666.60 736.47
(ii) _Trade receivables 14 898.72 848.75
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 15 247.60 146.82
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 16 418.76 179.10
(v) Others 17 42.51 28.97
c) Current tax assets (net) 18 0.08 6.43
d) Other current assets 19 458.38 278.22
Total current assets 5,679.62 4,248.96
Total assets 15,122.68 13,654.37
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 20 177.20 177.18
b) Other equity 21 9,689.10 8,796.08
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Holding Company 9,866.30 8,973.26
c) Non-controlling interest 54 436.78 468.17
Total equity 10,303.08 9,441.43
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 535.97 298.84
(ii) Lease liabilities 23 170.27 144.36
(i) Other financial liabilities 24 5.59 4.95
b) Provisions 25 68.31 64.37
c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 26 109.03 90.99
Total non-current liabilities 889.17 603.51
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 27 622.10 700.18
(i) _Lease liabilities 28 36.75 30.41
(i) Trade payables
Due to micro and small enterprises 29 184.98 165.24
Due to others 29 2,236.73 2,021.37
(iv) Other financial liabilities 30 312.60 279.84
b) Other current liabilities 31 112.35 66.70
c) Provisions 32 249.89 214.01
d) Current tax liabilities (net) 33 175.03 131.68
Total current liabilities 3,930.43 3,609.43
Total liabilities 4,819.60 4,212.94
Total equity and liabilities 15,122.68 13,654.37
Material and other accounting policies 6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these C lidated fi ial t

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For G Basu & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 301174E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mohit Malhotra
Whole Time Director
DIN: 08346826

Ankush Jain
Chief Financial Officer

Mohit Burman
Chairman
DIN: 00021963

Ashok Kumar Jain
EVP (Finance) and Company Secretfary

M. No.: FCS 4311

Subroto Lahiri
Partner
Membership No.:051717

P.D. Narang
Whole Time Director
DIN: 00021581

Place : New Delhi
Date : 02 May 2024
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Consolidated Statement, of” Profit and Loss

for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 34 12,404.01 11,529.89
Other income 35 482.41 445.39
Total income 12,886.42 11,975.28
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 36 5,186.90 5,306.97
Purchases of stock-in-trade 1,211.11 1,052.49
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-intrade and work-in-progress 37 48.95 (90.79)
Employee benefits expense 38 1,239.56 1,137.00
Finance costs 39 124.18 78.24
Depreciation and amortisation expense 40 399.21 310.96
Other expenses
Advertisement and publicity 849.06 640.27
Others 41 1,468.20 1,319.83
Total expenses 10,527.17 9,754.97
Profit before share of loss from joint venture, exceptional items and tax 2,359.25 2,220.31
Share of loss of joint venture 55 (0.51) (1.63)
Profit before ptional items and tax 2,358.74 2,218.68
Exceptional items - -
Profit before tax 2,358.74 2,218.68
Tax expense 43
Current tax 539.53 481.63
Deferred tax 7.90 35.72
Total tax expense 547.43 517.35
Net profit for the year 1,811.31 1,701.33
Oiher compr h ive i 44
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (2.93) (2.21)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1.05 0.77
B (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss (78.91) (247.93)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (11.09) 23.98
Total other comprehensive income (91.88) (225.39)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,719.43 1,475.94
Net profit attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company 1,842.68 1,707.15
Non-controlling interest (31.37) (5.82)
Other comprehensive i attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company (91.86) (225.49)
Non-controlling interest (0.02) 0.10
Total comprehensive i attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company 1,750.82 1,481.66
Non-controlling interest (31.39) (5.72)
Earnings per equity share
Basic 45 10.40 9.64
Diluted ¥ 10.38 9.61
Material and other ting polici 6
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these C lidated fi
This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For G Basu & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 301174E
Subroto Lahiri Mohit Burman Mohit Malhotra P.D. Narang

Partner Chairman
Membership No.:051717 DIN: 00021963

Ashok Kumar Jain
Place : New Delhi

Date :02 May 2024 M. No.: FCS 4311

EVP (Finance) and Company Secretary

Whole Time Director

DIN: 08346826

Ankush Jain

Chief Financial Officer

Whole Time Director
DIN: 00021581
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(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 2,358.74 2,218.68
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 399.21 310.96
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 1.78 (14.47)
Share based payment expense 50.43 51.23
Provision for disputed liability 15.00 12.00
Expected credit loss/impairment of financial and non-financial assets 8.14 0.71
Provisions for employee benefits 24.83 16.69
Finance costs 124.18 78.24
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (net) 1.01 (4.28)
Interest income (393.10) (361.13)
Share of loss of joint venture 0.51 1.63
(Gain)/loss on fair valuation of financial instruments (net) (39.45) 1.26
Net gain on sale of financial assets measured at FVTPL (18.51) (23.65)
Effect of exchange rates on translation of operating cashflows (126.52) (144.98)
Operating profit before working capital changes and other adjustments 2,406.25 2,142.95
Working capital changes and other adjustments:
Inventories 77.24 (96.02)
Trade receivables (55.34) (190.79)
Current and non-current financial assets (4.92) 19.32
Other current and non-current assets (203.77) 17.39
Trade payables 216.57 141.30
Other current and non-current financial liabilities 26.19 43.11
Other current liabilities and provisions 45.17 (94.38)
Cash flows from operating activities post working capital changes 2,507.39 1,982.88
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (493.92) (494.45)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 2,013.47 1,488.43
B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and intangible (563.86) (509.09)
assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2.98 23.38
Purchase of Investment in a Subsidiary (481.32)
Purchases of investments / bank deposits (5,142.12) (4,177.43)
A -‘:‘:f-':‘.f:'::"';'- -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Proceeds from sale/redemption of investments / bank deposits 4,344.31 4,163.73
Interest received 386.95 394.19
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (971.74) (586.54)

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital 0.03 0.39
Repayments of non-current borrowing (including current maturities) (11.85) (1.26)
Proceeds of non-current borrowing 248.86
Repayment of current borrowings (666.42) (884.67)
Proceeds from current borrowings 382.23 934.71
Principal payment of lease liabilities (28.94) (25.47)
Interest payment of lease liabilities (12.65) (10.63)
Purchase of non controlling interest (49.70)
Dividend paid (965.76) (921.37)
Finance costs paid (106.68) (77.90)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (1,161.18) (1,035.24)

Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (119.45) (133.35)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 97.57 22717

Cash and cash equivalents acquired in a business combination (refer note 66) 1.41

Impact of changes in exchange rates 0.70 2.34

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (21.18) 97.57

Note:

Cash and cash equivalent (as per note 15 to the financial statements) 247.60 146.82

Balances with banks in cash credit accounts (refer note 27) (268.78) (49.25)

Balances with banks in over draft accounts (refer note 27)

Cash and cash equivalent as per Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (21.18) 97.57

Note: The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7,

‘Statement of Cash Flows'.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements

This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For G Basu & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 301174E

Subroto Lahiri Mohit Burman
Partner Chairman
Membership No.:051717 DIN: 00021963
Ashok Kumar Jain
Place : New Delhi EVP (Finance) and Company Secretary
Date : 02 May 2024 M. No.: FCS 4311
Vol
Ny 0.‘,'!
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Mohit Malhotra
Whole Time Director
DIN: 08346826

Ankush Jain
Chief Financial Officer

P.D. Narang
Whole Time Director
DIN: 00021581
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Material accounting policies and other explanatory
information
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Group information

Dabur India Limited (the ‘Holding Company’) is a
domestic public limited company with registered office
situated at 8/3, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi — 110002 and
is listed on the BSE Limited (‘BSE’) and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (‘NSE’).

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Holding Company, its
subsidiaries and joint venture collectively hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Group’. The Group is one of the
leading global fast moving consumer goods (FMCG)
players’ dealing in consumer care and food products. It
has wide network of operations in local as well as foreign
markets.

General information and statement of compliance
with Ind AS

These consolidated financial statements (‘financial
statements’) of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other relevant
provisions of the Act. The Group has uniformly applied
the accounting policies during the periods presented.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees
(?') which is also the functional currency of the Holding
Company.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 02 May 2024. The revision to
financial statements is permitted by the Board of Directors
after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of
regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on going
concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial
statements have been prepared on historical cost basis
except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities
and share based payments which are measured at fair
values as explained in relevant accounting policies.

Amount in the financial statements are presented in
T crores, unless otherwise stated. Certain amounts that
are required to be disclosed and do not appear due to
rounding-off are expressed as 0.00 crores.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. The
Group can have power over the investee even if it
owns less than majority voting rights i.e. rights arising
from other contractual arrangements. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date when control ceases. Statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income (‘OCI’)) of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed off during the period
are recognized from the effective date of acquisition, or
up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding together
like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses.

Intercompany transactions, balances and un-realized
gains/ losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity,
represent the portion of a subsidiary’s Statement of Profit
and Loss and net assets that is not held by the Group.
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income (‘OCI')) is attributed to
the equity holders of the Holding Company and to the
non-controlling interest basis the respective ownership
interests and such balance is aftributed even if this results
in controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
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equity owners of the Group. Such a change in ownership

interest results in an adjustment between the carrying

amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests

to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any

difference between the amount of the adjustment to

non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or

received is recognized within equity.

Joint venture

Interest in joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method, after initially being recognized at cost. The
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in the share of net assets
of the investee, adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies of the Group.
The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
the OCI) includes the Group's share of the results of
the operations of the investee. Dividends received or
receivable from joint ventures are recognized as a

reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

5A. Recent accounting pronouncements issued but not

made effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new
standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments

to the existing standards applicable to the Group.

5B. Application of new or amended standards

Following amendment of Ind AS- 1, the concept of
‘Significant Accounting Policies’ has given way to
‘Material Accounting Policies’, the latter enjoins disclosure
of only accounting policies in company specific context
out of multiple options granted under Ind AS for such
treatments. Pursuant to this the accounting policies have

been divided info two parts: -
B Material Accounting Policies

B Other Accounting Policies

6A. Material Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the
material and other accounting policies and measurement

basis summarized below:

a. Revenue recognition:

# Revenue from sale of products is recognised
when control of products being sold is transferred
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to customer and when there are no longer
any unfulfilled obligations. The performance
obligations in contracts are considered as
fulfilled in accordance with the terms agreed with
the respective customers.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and are
accounted for net of returns, rebates and trade
discount. Sales, as disclosed, are exclusive of

goods and services tax, where applicable.

The Group considers the terms of the contract
and its customary business practices to
determine the transaction price. The transaction
price is the amount of consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties (for example taxes collected on behalf
of government). The consideration promised in
a contract with a customer may include fixed
consideration, variable consideration (if reversal
is less likely in future), or both.

The transaction price is allocated by the Group
to each performance obligation in an amount
that depicts the amount of consideration to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring the promised goods to the customer.

For each performance obligation identified, the
Group determines at contract inception whether
it satisfies the performance obligation over time
or satisfies the performance obligation at a point
in fime.

When either party to a contract has performed its
obligation, an entity shall present the contract in
the balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract
liability, depending on the relationship between
the Group’s performance and the customer’s
payment.

Income from export incentives such as duty
drawback, premium on sale of import licenses
and lease license fee are recognized on accrual
basis when no significant uncertainties as to the
amount of consideration that would be derived
and as to its ultimate collection exist.

Rental income is recognized on a straightline
basis over the terms of the lease, except for
contingent rental income which is recognized
when it arises and where scheduled increase
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in rent compensates the lessor for expected
inflationary costs.

¢ Interest income is recognized using effective
interest method.

+ Dividend income is recognized at the time when
the right o receive is established by the reporting
date.

# Other incomes have been recognized on accrual
basis in the financial statements, except when
there is uncerfainty of collection.

b. Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. These tangible assets
are held for use in production, supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes.

o Cost comprises of purchase cost, freight, duties,
taxes and other expenses directly incidental to
acquisition, bringing the asset to the location
and installation including site restoration up to
the time when the asset is ready for intended
use. Such costs also include borrowing cost if the
recognition criteria are met.

o When a major inspection / repair occur, its
cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any
remaining carrying amount of the cost of
previous inspection / repair is derecognized. All
other repair and maintenance are recognized in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred.

o Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is provided over the useful lives of assets as
specified in Schedule Il to the Act except where
the management, has estimated useful life of an
asset supported by the technical assessment,
external or internal i.e., higher or lower from the
indicative useful life given under Schedule II. The
management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation
of the period over which the assets are likely to
be used.

« Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

c.
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Description Useful lives (upto)
Leasehold land Over lease period
Building 60 years

Plant and machinery | 15 years

Furniture and fixtures | 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office equipment 10 years

The residual value and useful life is reviewed
annually and any deviation is accounted for as a
change in estimate.

o Components relevant to property, plant and
equipment, where significant, are separately
depreciated on straight-line basis in terms of their
life span assessed by technical evaluation in item
specific context.

+ For new projects, all direct expenses and direct
overheads (excluding services of non-exclusive
nature provided by employees in Group's regular
payroll) are capitalized till the assets are ready for
intended use.

+ During disposal of property, plant and equipment,
any profit earned / loss sustained towards excess
/ shortfall of sale value vis-a-vis carrying cost of
assets is accounted for in Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Investment property:

Properties held to earn rentals or / and for capital
appreciation or both but not for sale in the ordinary
course of business, use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes, are categorized as investment
properties. These are measured initially at cost of
acquisition, including transaction costs and other
direct costs attributable to bringing asset to its
working condition for intended use. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost shall
also include borrowing cost if the recognition
criteria are met. Said assets are depreciated on
straight line basis based on expected life span
of assets which is in accordance with Schedule

Il of the Act.
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Significant parts of the property are depreciated
separately based on their specific useful lives as
follows:

Description Useful lives (upto)

Leasehold land Over lease period

Building 60 years

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment properties
is recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Fair value of investments properties under each
category are disclosed under note 7C to the financial
statements. Fair values are determined based on
the evaluation performed by an accredited external
independent valuer applying a recognized and
accepted valuation model or estimation based on
available sources of information from market.

Transfers to or from the investment property is made
only when there is a change in use and the same is
made at the carrying amount of investment property.

Intangible assets:

+ Intangible assets acquired separately
measured on initial recognition at cost of
acquisition. The cost comprises of purchase
price and directly aftributable costs of bringing
the assets to its working condition for intended
use. Intangible assets arising on acquisition of
business are measured at fair value as at date
of acquisition. In case of internally generated
assets, measured at development cost subject to
satisfaction of recognition criteria (identifiability,
control and  future benefit) in
accordance with Ind AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets'.

are

economic

o Abrand/ trademark acquired as part of a business
combination is recognised outside goodwill, at
fair value at the date of acquisition. Distribution
network acquired in a business combination are
recognized at fair value at the acquisition date.

o Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

o Infangible Assets with finite lives are amortized
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
economic life. The amortization expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognized
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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& Amortization of intangible assets such as
softwares is computed on a straightline basis,
at the rates representing estimated useful life
of up to 5 years. The brands, trademarks and
distribution network acquired as part of business
combinations normally have an estimated useful

life of up to 10 years.
Government subsidy / grants:

Government grant is recognized only when there is a
reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with
the conditions attached to them and the grants will
be received.

o Subsidy related to assets is recognized as
deferred income which is recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on
systematic basis over the useful life of the assets.

& Purchase of assets and receipts of related
grants are separately disclosed in Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow.

o Grants related to income are treated as other
operating income in Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss subject to due disclosure about
the nature of grant.

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109 ‘Financial
Instruments’, the Group applies expected credit loss
(‘ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is
the weighted-average of difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate, with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights. When
estimating the cash flows, the Group is required
to consider:

o All contractual terms of the financial assets
(including prepayment and extension) over the

expected life of the assets; and

¢ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

¢ Trade receivables:

In respect of trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial
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Instruments’, which requires measurement of
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit
losses are the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

¢ Other financial assets:

In respect of its other financial assets, the Group
assesses if the credit risk on those financial
assets has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses.

When making this assessment, the Group uses
the change in the risk of a default occurring
over the expected life of the financial asset.
To make that assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial asset as
at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that
is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition. The Group assumes
that the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the financial asset is determined to have low
credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Taxation:

Tax expense recognized in Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax
and current tax except the ones recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in
respect of taxable income for the year and is
computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations
of the respective jurisdictions. Current income tax
relating to items recognized outside profit or loss
is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

Current Tax for the period include Minimum
Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) paid, credit entitlement
against which is recognised as Deferred Tax Asset
based on convincing evidence of applicability of
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normal income tax in near future. Deferred tax so
created is reviewed at each year end for necessary
adjustment.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit under provisions of the Income Tax
Acts of the respective jurisdictions.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax relating to items recognized
outside Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
is recognized outside Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity).

Share based payments - Employee Stock Option
Scheme (‘ESOP’):

Certain employees of the Group receive part of their
remuneration in the form of sharebased payment
transactions, whereby employees render services
in exchange for shares or rights over shares of the
Company (‘equity-seftled transactions’).

The fair value of options granted under Employee
Stock Option Plan is recognized as an employee
benefits expense with a corresponding increase
in equity. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options determined under Black-Scholes model.
The total expense is recognized over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity. Upon
exercise of share options, the proceeds received
are allocated to share capital up to the par value of
the shares issued with any excess being recorded
as share premium. If the options are forfeited or
not exercised after vesting date, related expenses
already recognized in statement of profit and loss
are not reversed but transferred to other component
within equity.
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6B. Other Accounting Policies c.

The financial statements have been prepared using the
material and other accounting policies and measurement
bases summarized below:

a. Current / non-current classification:

All assets and liabilities have been classified as
current or non-current as per the Group’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set-out in the Act.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and non-current liabilities, as
the case may be. The operating cycle is the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

b. Business combinations

o The Group applies the acquisition method in
accounting for business combinations. The
consideration for acquisition by the Group to
obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated at the
acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and the equity inferests issued
by the Group. Acquisition costs are expensed as
incurred.

o Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
acquisition-date fair values.

* Goodwill is measured as excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests and fair
value of any previous interest held, over the fair d
value of the net of identifiable assets acquired )
and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the
net of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed is in excess of the aggregate mentioned
above, the resulting gain on bargain purchase
is recognized in OCl and accumulated in
equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no
clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity
recognizes the gain directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through other

o e.
comprehensive income.
o Business combinations involving entities or
businesses under common control have been
accounted for using the pooling of interest
method. The assets and liabilities of the combining
entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. No
adjustments have been made to reflect fair values,
or to recognize any new assefs or liabilities.
- ‘ @&
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Hyperinflation Economies

The Group applies IND AS 29 ‘Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies’ for the subsidiaries
whose functional currency is the currency of
Hyperinflation economy. In determining whether the
economy is under hyperinflation, both qualitative
and quantitative factors are considered, including
whether the cumulative inflation rate over three years
is approaching, or exceeds, 100%.

The application of IND AS 29 includes:

# adjustment of historical cost non-monetary assets
and liabilities for the change in purchasing
power caused by inflation from the date of initial
recognition to the balance sheet date;

# adjustment of revenue and expenses for inflation
during the reporting period;

o adjustment in statement of profit and loss account
to reflect the impact of inflation rate movement
on holding non-monetary assets and liabilities
(including equity) in hyperinflationary currency;
and

o adjustment of inflation on goodwill in retained
earnings

Further, in accordance with Ind AS 21 ‘The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange Ratfes, the
comparative amounts in the Consolidated Financial
Statements are not adjusted for subsequent changes
in the price level i.e. consumer price index for the
hyperinflationary economy.

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets
under development:

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under
development represents expenditure incurred in
respect of capital projects / intangible assets under
development and are carried at cost. Cost comprises
of purchase cost, related acquisition expenses,
development / construction costs, borrowing costs
and other direct expenditure.

Goodwill

Goodwill is an asset representing the future
economic benefits arising from other assets
acquired in a business combination that are not
individually identified and separately recognized.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the consideration transferred over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
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f.

g.

measured in accordance with Ind AS 103 ‘Business
Combinations'.

Goodwill is considered to have indefinite useful life
and hence is not subject to amortization but tested
for impairment annually. After initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets:
+ Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment on annual
basis. If on testing, any impairment exists, the
carrying amount of goodwill is reduced to the
extent of any impairment loss and such loss is
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

¢ Other assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there is any indication based on internal
/ external factors, that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset or the cash generating unit
(CGU) is estimated. If such recoverable amount
of the asset or CGU to which the asset belongs
is less than its carrying amount. The carrying
amount is reduced fo its recoverable amount and
the reduction is treated as an impairment loss
and is recognized in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss.

If, at the reporting date, there is an indication
that a previously assessed impairment loss
no longer exists or declined, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected
at the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortization or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognized for the
assets in prior years or with reduced impairment
provision.  Impairment previously
recognized are accordingly reversed in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

losses

Financial instruments:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities
recognized when the Group becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the financial instrument

are

and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs, except for those carried at fair
value through profit or loss which are measured
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initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities is described
below:

Non-derivative financial assets
Subsequent measurement
¢ Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at the amortized
cost, if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets for

collecting contractual cash flows; and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (‘SPPI’) on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial such financial

assets

measurement,
subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (‘EIR’) method.

are

+ Investments in other equity instruments

Investments in equity instruments which are held
for trading are classified as at fair value through
profit or loss (‘FVTPL). For all other equity
instruments, the Group makes an irrevocable
choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument
by instrument basis, to classify the same either
as at fair value through other comprehensive
income (‘FVTOCI') or fair value through profit
or loss (‘FVTPL). Amounts presented in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently
transferred to profit or loss. However, the Group
transfers the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
Dividends on such investments are recognized in
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

¢ Debt instruments

Debt
amortized

instruments are initially measured at
cost, value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI') or fair value
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL) till de-recognition
on the basis of:

fair

i) the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets; and

ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

-
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*

a. Measured at amortized cost

Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest ('SPPI'), are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the EIR method less
impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR
and loss arising from impairment, if any, is
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

b. Measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved
by both, selling financial assets and
collecting contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest,
are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (‘OCI’). Interest
income measured using the EIR method and
impairment losses, if any, are recognized
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss.

c. Measured at fair value through profit or
loss

A financial asset not classified as either
amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as
FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured
at fair value with all changes in fair value,
including interest income and dividend
income if any, recognized as ‘other income’
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Investments in mutual funds

Investments in mutual funds are measured at
FVTPL.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognized
when the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the Group has
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transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-
derivative financial liabilities are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments
in the form of future contracts to mitigate the risk
of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency
exposure. The counterparty for these contracts
are scheduled commercial banks / regulated
brokerage firms.

Although these derivatives constitute hedges
from an economic perspective, they do not
qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS
109 ‘Financial Instruments’ and consequently
are categorized as financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
The resulting exchange gain or loss is included
in other income / expenses and attributable
transaction costs are recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when
incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified party fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognized as a financial liability at the time the
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guarantee is issued at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the
liability is measured at the higher of the amount
of expected loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial
Instruments’ and the amount recognized less
cumulative amortization.

¢ Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to seftle on
a net basis, to realize the assets and setile the
liabilities simultaneously.

h. Fair value measurement:

The Group measures financial instruments, such as,
derivatives at fair value at each Consolidated Balance
Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

& In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best
inferest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
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maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

determines  the  policies

and procedures for both recurring fair value

The  management

measurement, such as derivative instruments and
unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and
for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held
for distribution in discontinued operations.

Leases:
Where the Group is the lessee
Right of use assets and lease liabilities

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 April
2019, the Group considers whether a contract is, or
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right fo use an
asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration’. The Group enters info
leasing arrangements for various assets. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset (ii) the Group obtains substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (iii) the Group
has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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Recognition and initial measurement

At lease commencement date, the Group recognizes
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at
cost, which is made up of the initial measurement
of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred
by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any),
and any lease payments made in advance of the
lease commencement date (net of any incentives
received).

Subsequent measurement

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of
the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.
The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for
impairment when such indicators exist.

At lease commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily
available or the Group's incremental borrowing
rate. Lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) and variable
payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent
to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced
for payments made and increased for interest.
It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or
modification, or if there are changes in in-substance
fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-
measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected
in the right-of-use asset.

The Group has elected to account for shortterm
leases and leases of low-value assets using the
practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a
rightof-use asset and lease liability, the payments
in relation to these are recognized as an expense
in consolidated statement of profit and loss on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.
Where the Group is the lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recognized on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis as per
the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
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incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized over the lease term on the
same basis as renfal income. Contingent rents are
recognized as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due
from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the Group's net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect

of the lease.

Inventories:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Cost includes purchase price,
duties, transport, handing costs and other costs
directly aftributable to the acquisition and bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary fo make the sale.

The basis of determination of cost is as follows:

o Raw material, packing material and stock-in-trade
valued on moving weighted average basis;

+ Stores and spares valued on weighted average
basis;

& Work-in-progress valued at cost of input valued at
moving weighted average basis plus overheads
up till the stage of completion; and

+ Finished goods valued at cost of input valued at
moving weighted average basis plus appropriate
overheads.

Employee benefits:

Liabilities in respect of employee benefits to
employees are provided for as follows:

+ Current employee benefits

a. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits that are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognized in
respect of employees’ services up fo the end
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of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be incurred when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee dues payable
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Employees’ State Insurance (‘ESI’) is provided
on the basis of actual liability accrued and
paid to authorities.

The Group has adopted a policy on
compensated absences which are both
accumulating and  non-accumulating in
nature. The expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences is determined
by actuarial valuation performed by an
independent actuary at each balance sheet
date using projected unit credit method on
the additional amount expected to be paid /
availed as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the balance
sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating
compensated absences is recognized in the
period in which the absences occur.

Expense in respect of other shortterm
benefits is recognized on the basis of the
amount paid or payable for the period
during which services are rendered by the
employee.

o Post separation employee benefit plan

Defined benefit plan

m Post separation benefits of Directors are
accounted for on the basis of actuarial
valuation as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employee
Benefits'.

m Gratuity liability accounted for on the
basis of actuarial valuation as per Ind
AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits'. Liability
recognized in the Consolidated Balance

Corporate Overview Board & Management Reports Financial Statements

period on government bonds that have
terms approximate to the terms of the
related obligation. The net interest cost is
calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan
assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

m Group confributes its share of
contribution to Employees’ Provident
Fund Scheme administered by a separate
trust with its obligation to make good the
shortfall, if any, in trust fund arising on
account of difference between the return
on investments of the trust and the interest
rate on provident fund dues notified
periodically by the Central Government
and any expected loss in investment.
Liability recognized in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet in respect of Dabur India
E.P.F. trust is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of
each reporting period less the fair value
of plan assets on the basis of actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit
method.

m Actuarial gain / loss pertaining to
gratuity and post separation benefits
are accounted for as OCI. All remaining
components of costs are accounted for
in Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss.

b. Defined contribution plans

Liability for superannuation fund is provided
on the basis of the premium paid to insurance
company in respect of employees covered
under Superannuation Fund Policy.

Sheet in respect of gratuity is the present I

Provisions, ti t liabili d ti t
value of the defined benefit obligation rovisions, contingent liability and contingen

at the end of each reporting period assets:

less the fair value of plan assets. The & Provisions are recognized only when there is a
defined benefit obligation is calculated present obligation, as a result of past events and
annually by an independent actuary when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation
using the projected unit credit method. can be made at the reporting date. These estimates
The present value of defined benefit is are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
determined by discounting the estimated to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are
future cash outflows by reference to discounted to their present values, where the time
market yield at the end of each reporting value of money is material.
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+ Contingent liability is disclosed for:

a. Possible obligations which will be confirmed
only by future events not wholly within the
control of the Group; or

b. Present obligations arising from past events
where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the
obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation cannot be made.

o Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed except when realization of income is
virtually certain, related asset is recognized.

m. Foreign currency translation:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the
functional currency, by applying the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at
the balance sheet date are converted to functional
currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items
denominated in a foreign currency which are carried
at historical cost are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on
seflement, or restatement as at reporting date, at
rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded, are recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they
arise.

Functional and reporting currencies of foreign
operations are different from the reporting currency of
the Holding Company. For all the foreign operations
of the Group, all assets and liabilities (excluding
equity share capital and opening reserves and
surplus) are translated into Indian Rupees ('T’) using
the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Equity share capital, reserves and surplus are carried
at historical cost. Revenues, costs and expenses are
translated using the weighted-average exchange rate
during the reporting period. The resultant currency
translation difference is recognized as foreign
currency translation reserve under the head ‘other
equity’.

Operating segments:

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
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the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) of
the Group. The CODM is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments of the Group.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing
the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit for the period aftributed to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
the effects of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

Research and development:

Expenditure on research is recognized as an expense
when it is incurred. Expenditure on development
which does not meet the criteria for recognition
as an intangible asset is recognized as an expense
when it is incurred.

ltems of property, plant and equipment and
acquired intangible assets utilized for research and
development are capitalized and depreciated /
amortized in accordance with the policies stated for
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets.

Borrowing cost:

Borrowing cost consists of interest and other costs
incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds
and also include exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the same. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition and/or
construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized
during the period of time that is necessary to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily
takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged
to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents:

For the purpose of the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand
deposits with banks where the original maturity is
three months or less and other shortterm highly
liquid investments net of outstanding bank overdrafts

A\
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and cash credit facilities as they are considered an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

s. Assets held for sale

The Group classifies assets as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale rather than through continuing use
of the assets and actions required to complete
such sale indicate that it is unlikely that significant
changes to the plan to sell will be made or that the
decision to sell will be withdrawn. Also, such assets
are classified as held for sale, if the management
expects to complete the sale within one year from the
date of classification.

Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less
cost to sell.

6C. Significant management judgement in applying

material and other accounting policies and
estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires the management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities.

B Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires, the management
to make an assessment of several external and
internal factors which could result in deterioration of
recoverable amount of the assets.

B Leases

The Group enters info leasing arrangements for
various premises. The assessment (including
measurement) of the lease is based on several factors,
including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership
of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option
to extend/terminate etc. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is
a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise or
not to exercise the option to extend or to terminate.

B Recoverability of advances / receivables

At each balance sheet date, based on historical
default rates observed over expected life, the

Corporate Overview Board & Management Reports Financial Statements

management assesses the expected credit losses on
outstanding receivables and advances.

Defined benefit obligation (‘DBO’)

Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a
number of underlying assumptions such as standard
rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and
anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in
these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO
amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Provisions

At each balance sheet date, basis the management
judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Group assesses the requirement of provisions against
the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the
actual future outcome may be different from this
judgement.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary
course of business in relation to claims against the
Group, refer note 47A. By their nature, contingencies
will be resolved only when one or more uncertain
future events occur or fail fo occur. The assessment
of the existence, and potential quantum, of
contingencies inherently involves the exercise of
significant judgments and the use of estimates
regarding the outcome of future events.

Fair value measurements

Management applies valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not available) and
share based payments. This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how
market participants would price the instrument. The
Group engages third party valuers, where required,
to perform the valuation. Information about the
valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the fair value of various assets, liabilities and share
based payments are disclosed in the notes to
consolidated financial statements.

Inventories

The Group estimates the net realizable values of
inventories, taking into account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date. The future
realization of these inventories may be affected by
future demand or other market-driven changes that
may reduce future selling prices.
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Useful lives of depreciable / amortizable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives
of depreciable / amortizable assets at each reporting
date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical
and economic obsolescence that may change the
utility of assets.

Valuation of investment property

Investment property is stated at cost. However,
as per Ind AS 40 ‘Investment Property’, there is a
requirement to disclose fair value as at the balance
sheet date. The Group engaged independent
valuation specialists to determine the fair value of its
investment property as at reporting date.

Business combinations and intangible assets

The Holding Company uses valuation techniques
when determining the fair values of certain assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination. In
particular, the fair value of contingent consideration
is dependent on the outcome of many variables
including the acquirees’ future profitability. These
valuations are conducted by independent valuation
experts.
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Income taxes

Significant judgements are involved in estimating
budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax,
determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected fo be paid / recovered for uncertain
tax positions. The extent to which deferred tax assets/
minimum alternate tax credit can be recognized is
based on management's assessment of the probability
of the future taxable income against which the deferred
tax assets/minimum alternate tax credit can be utilized.

Recognition of deferred tax liability on
undistributed profits

The extent to which the Holding Company can control the
timing of reversal of deferred tax liability on undistributed
profits of its subsidiaries requires judgement.

Impairment of Goodwill

Impairment testing for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite life is done at least once annually and
upon occurrence of an indication of impairment. The
growth rates and the margins used to make estimation
of future performance are based on past performance
and our estimates of future growths and margin
achievable in the CGUs. Pretax discount rates reflect
specific risks relating fo the relevant segments and
geographies in which the CGUs operate.



428

Corporate Overview Board & Management Reports Financial Statements

Dabur India Limited

youessas esnoyul s, Auedwor) Buip|oH je paiindul (se1oid 00 ¥ 2 €20 Y2IBW LE) $84010 9°( 2 sepnjoul juswdinbae pue jueld ‘Aiedoid aroqe sy} o) uolippy (e

"00L O g wouy BuiBuel sieak sy} 1o} ases| uo usye} pue| sjussaiday : pue| pjoyases (q
"ysapeld Jeyn ‘peqeqiyes e saiijioe) juswdojaasp pue

IS9JON
v6'09S°C |00°SEE'T [LE'6L 6E'8L  |LL'VS 68'TVE’L |TL'SL8 (TS'V8  |V6'STT |LEVLL €9°LS ¥20T Y21eW LE 4e se jpojq joN
T9LET'T |62°0V0'T |0S°0T T66L  |VLLS L9'¥SL'L |TO'SOL |vv'C8  [€€°L6L |TS'SYL L8°LS €20 Yo1eW LE & se Xo|q jaN
6L'89L'C |¥L'600'T [€T'EL v9'sT  [LS'VOL sy'zev'L |z8'eLe | SY'8SL |0L'6VL SL'8 ¥20T YoIeW LE je se aduejeg
(rzze)  |(8e2cT) (cL0) (6£0)  |lov'L) (Levl) (08°G) (000) 710 LE'0 (zL0) @ouB.a4Ip uoe|suel} Aousnd ubleiog
82'CS 82'CS - - Ly’ SG/L ze'8¢ - - - - (69 stou sajai) yuswisnlpy uonejjuiadAny
(evee) (£8'ze) (612) (0927)  |loze) (95v2) (9z°0) - (9s'0)  |(6€°0) (zL0) {eak ay} J1oj sjuawsnipe/sjesodsiq
6L'10€ 18292 €58 956 orTL €8°00T v¥'Ge (Loo) 868  [86'9¢ 002 Jeak ay} 1o} UOHIPPY
6L'698'L |06'6VL'L [LOLY LV'ET (9706 €6'TGT°L (TL'9LE [L0°O 68'6LL |08°CTLL 60’L €T0T Yo1eW LE e se aduejeg
(zoel) (85¥L) 80°0 (Loo)  |(8s0) (reel) (ev0) (000)  [960 960 (000) 9dUasBYIp uole|suel} ASuaLind ubiaiog
(£8'52) (L9T2) (rv'L) (8rs)  |(99°1) (68°€l) (oz0) - (oze)  |(062) (og0) Jeak sy} Jof sjuswiysnpe / sjesodsiq
z59/C  |e0'LvT 90’8 v8y vLLL 8€/8L 0962 100 6¥'se  |oLee 6L Jeak ay 1o} UoHIPPY
9L'TEY’L (TL'OVS'L |LE'09 TLve  (9L18 8L'T60L |SL'L8T | v9'98 (v0'L8 09°S 220z |1dy LO e se adouejeg

uoyealdap pajejnwndoy
eL6TL'Y |VLYVE'Y (VS'T6 €0'Vy  |VE'6SL LE'SLL'T |Vv6'88LL [TS'V8  |6€V8E |LO'YVTE 8€°09 ¥20T Yo1eW LE je se aduejeg
(Leze) (rL€) vz 0) (eTL) (g€ (ré°cz) (ov'8) ¥0'0 LY 206 [Cr40) 9ousIBlip uole|suel; Aousind ubisioy
88°/TL 88°/TL - - LeoL ¥2'9¢ 99°6L 191 - - - (69 @10 13481) yuswysnipy uoyejjuriadAy
(LL'Ty) (zsL8) (oL2) (L9€) (ece) (L8'L2) (ss°0) - (6Lg)  |(Lew) (82°0) 1eak sy} 1o suawisnlpe / sjesodsiq
€v'8el ev'8el 9L0 V€0 290 §8'L6 98'v¢ - - - - ssalBoid-uisjiom |ejided wouy Jajsuel]
6¥'ory  |06°TLE 199 vL'G LoL 6¥'L62 €2'C9 9€'0 6519 [85'G9 L0 Jeak sy} 10} uoHIPPY
LY'LOL'Y |6L°06L'E |LS'L8 6c'ey  |oLsvl 09°'L0v'T |VL'LZO'L |S¥'T8  |TTLLE |TE'8ST 06°8S €T0T YoIeW LE e se aduejeg
(85'9z)  |(LE'LE) (0°0) (co0) |(sL2) (6€°1L2) (€5°s) (LL2) €Ly €LY - 9oUasBYIp uole|suel} ASusLind ubiaiog
(009¢)  |(820¢E) (G9°1) (LT6) (8sL) (£921) (Le o) - () |(eov) (og0) Jeak sy} Jof sjuswiysnpe / sjesodsiq
60621 60621 600 (90) |01 €T Y6 LEVE - - - - ssaiBo.d-utjiom |epded woly Jajsuel)
(99 atou 1ayoy) uoyeuIquIOd
A €9'8¢ SL'0 L£0 00 296 88'8 L6'8L 09'L 09'L ssoulsnq o} juensind  uouippy
96'66€  |£V'G9€ €90l v6'S 6£91 62692 2829 9€'0 esve  |ovee eLL Jeak sy} 1o} uoHippy
LL'009'E [EL'6LE'E |VE'8L VO'LY  |L6'EEL TS'€LO'T [L6'0T6 (SE'S9  (8S°L8T [LS°€TT £0°8S 220z |1dy L0 e se odouejeg
v_uO_& me..o
juswdinba sainyxy pue | juswdinba pue| sBuipjinq - pue|

|eto} |eioL avo S9IIYaA | a4njuing pue jue|q |sBuipjing | pjoyaai4 | |ejol | asn jo yybry | pjoyasea

pueis sjasse paumQ sjosse paseaT uoydudsaqg

(peteis asimIayjo ssejun ‘saloid 3 Ul sjunowe ||y)

: SMOJ|0} SB 8le $Z0Z Y2JBW LE PUR £20T YoieW LE papus Jeak ay} Joj juswdinbs pue jueid ‘Auedouid jo enjea Buikiied sy ui seBueyo sy
INIWdINO3 ANV LNV1d ‘ALd3d0oAud

‘'VL

y 4
@

\
S

. 4

3
4



Corporate Overview Board & Management Reports Financial Statements

7B. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
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The changes in the carrying value of capital work-in-progress for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 are

as follows :

Description Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2022 167.16
Addition for the year 150.45
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (130.23)
Disposals for the year (0.40)
Foreign currency translation difference (15.86)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 * 171.12
Addition for the year 184.46
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (128.43)
Transfer to intangible asset

Disposals for the year (0.39)
Foreign currency translation difference (17.67)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 * 209.09

* |n no case completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost projected/estimated at the time of its original plan.

7C. INVESTMENT PROPERTY:

The changes in the carrying value of investment property for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 are as follows :

Description Freehold land Buildings Total
Gross block

Balance as at 01 April 2022 5.30 57.01 62.31
Addition for the year 0.01 - 0.01
Transfer to assets held for sale (0.01) (0.44) (0.45)
Foreign currency translation difference (0.09) (1.40) (1.49)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 5.21 55.17 60.38
Foreign currency translation difference (0.05) (0.8¢) (0.97)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 5.16 54.31 59.47
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01 April 2022 - 13.24 13.24
Addition for the year 1.12 1.12
Transfer to assets held for sale (0.45) (0.45)
Foreign currency translation difference (0.58) (0.58)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - 13.33 13.33
Addition for the year 1.09 1.09
Foreign currency translation difference (0.40) (0.40)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - 14.02 14.02
Net block as at 31 March 2023 5.21 41.84 47.05
Net block as at 31 March 2024 5.16 40.29 45.45

. e,
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a) Amount recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for investment properties:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

Rental income derived from investment properties (refer note 35) 12.25 10.40
Less: direct operating expenses that generated rental income 1.53 0.21
Profit from leasing of investment properties before depreciation 10.72 10.19
Less: depreciation expense 1.09 1.12
Profit from leasing of investment properties after depreciation 9.63 9.07

b) As at 31 March 2024, the fair value of investment properties are ¥ 111.74 crores (31 March 2023: ¥ 106.00 crores).
These valuations are based on the valuations performed by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies
(Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017. Fair value is based on market value approach. There has been no
restriction on disposal of property or remittance of income and proceeds of disposal.

c) Leasing arrangements

rentals payable monthly. Refer note 49 for details on future minimum lease rentals.

7D. GOODWILL

: Certain investment properties are leased to tenants under longterm operating leases with

The changes in the carrying value of goodwill for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 are as follows :

Description Goodwill
Balance as at 31 March 2022 251.15
Additions pursuant to business combination 154.21
Foreign currency franslation difference (0.11)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 405.25
Foreign currency translation difference (0.13)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 405.12

Notes:

i) Allocation of Goodwill to reportable segments:

The Group has identified consumer care business, foods and others as its reportable segments. The goodwill amounting
to ¥ 405.12 crores (31 March 2023: ¥ 405.25 crores) acquired through business combination has been allocated to

‘Consumer Care Business’ segment and ‘Food’ segment of the Group.

i) Allocation of goodwill to cash generating units (CGU):

Goodwill has been allocated to the following CGUs for impairment testing purpose with carrying amount of goodwill
being significant in comparison with the entity’s total carrying amount of goodwill with indefinite useful lives :

Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Hobi Kozmetik and RA Pazarlama CGU (‘Hobi Group’) 55.90 55.90
Namaste Group CGU 173.39 173.39
Badshah Masala CGU 154.21 154.21
Total 383.50 383.50

The recoverable amount of the above mentioned Groups, for impairment testing is determined based on value-in-use
calculations which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
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7E.

year period, as the Group believes this to be the most appropriate timescale for reviewing and considering annual

performance before applying a fixed terminal value multiple to the final cash flows. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period were extrapolated using estimate rates stated below.

iii) Key assumptions used for value in use calculations are as follows: *#

a) Hobi Kozmetik and RA Pazarlama CGU

The Group prepares its cash flow forecasts based on the most recent financial budgets approved by management
with projected average revenue growth rate ranging from 20% to 52% (31 March 2023: 16% to 23%) for the five-
year period. The growth rate used for extrapolation of cash flows beyond the five-year period covered by the forecast
is 2% (31 March 2023: 2%). The rate used to discount the forecasted cash flows ranges from 25% to 28% (31 March
2023: 20% to 25%).

b) Namaste CGU

The Group prepares its cash flow forecasts based on the most recent financial budgets approved by management
with projected average revenue growth rate ranging from 8% to 9% (31 March 2023: 8% to 10%) for the five-year
period. The growth rate used for extrapolation of cash flows beyond the five-year period covered by the forecast
is 1.5% (31 March 2023: 1.5%). The rate used to discount the forecasted cash flows ranging from 8% to 10% (31
March 2023: 9% to 11%).

Badshah Masala CGU

The Group prepares its cash flow forecasts based on the most recent financial budgets approved by management
with projected average revenue growth rate ranging from 15% to 22% (31 March 2023: 10% to 20%) for the five-
year period. The growth rate used for extrapolation of cash flows beyond the five-year period covered by the forecast
is 4% (31 March 2023: 4%) . The rate used to discount the forecasted cash flows ranging from 10% to 14% (31
March 2023: 11% to 15%) .

* Discount rates - Management estimates discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the risks specific to

the CGU, taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not

been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the
Group and its operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC).

# Growth rates - The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Management determines the budgeted growth
rates based on past performance and its expectations on market development. The weighted average growth rates used
were consistent with industry reports.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

The changes in the carrying value of intangible asset for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 are as follows:
Description Brands / Trademarks/ Computer Total

Distribution Network software

Gross block

Balance as at 01 April 2022 40.25 86.83| 127.08
Addition for the year - 5.65 5.65
Addition pursuant to business combination (Refer note 66) 875.00 - 875.00
Transfer from intangible assets under development - 1.46 1.46
Disposals / adjustments for the year - (0.16) (0.16)
Foreign currency translation difference 1.01 - 1.01
Balance as at 31 March 2023 916.26 93.78| 1,010.04

Vol
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Description Brands / Trademarks/ Computer Total
Distribution Network software

Addition for the year 0.02 10.79 10.81
Transfer from intangible assets under development 0.41 0.41
Disposals / adjustments for the year (0.13) (0.13)
Foreign currency translation difference 0.01 0.01
Balance as at 31 March 2024 916.29 104.85| 1,021.14
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Balance as at 01 April 2022 22.12 65.23 87.35
Addition for the year 25.61 7.71 33.32
Disposals for the year 0.16 0.16
Foreign currency translation difference 0.48 0.48
Balance as at 31 March 2023 48.21 73.10 121.31
Addition for the year 88.32 8.01 96.33
Foreign currency translation difference 0.01 0.01
Balance as at 31 March 2024 136.54 81.11| 217.65
Net block as at 31 March 2023 868.05 20.68| 888.73
Net block as at 31 March 2024 779.75 23.74| 803.49

INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT:

The changes in the carrying value of intangible assets under development for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31

March 2024 are as follows :

Description Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2022 0.34
Addition for the year 4.02
Transfer to intangible asset (0.34)
Foreign currency translation difference (0.01)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 * 4.01
Addition for the year 19.55
Transfer to intangible asset (0.47)
Foreign currency translation difference (0.01)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 * 23.14

* |n no case completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost projected/estimated at the time of its original plan.

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURE

Particulars No. of units | Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31 March | 31 March | 31 March
2024 2024 2023 2023

I Joint venture (unquoted) (fully paid) *

A Forum | Aviation Private Limited 74,87,251 7.33 74,87,251 7.84
Shares of face value ¥ 10 each
Total 7.33 7.84
_:{‘::"':'ol'l
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Particulars No. of units Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31March | 31March | 31March
2024 2024 2023 2023
I Investment in equity instruments
a) Other entities (unquoted) (fully paid) #
A Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited 18,000 0.02 18,000 0.02
Shares of face value of % 10 each
Sub-Total 0.02 0.02
Il Other investments
a) Investments in Government Securities or State Development
Loans (quoted) (fully paid) #
A 8.60% Government of India 2028 3,00,00,000 | 324.79 | 3,00,00,000 326.49
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
B 8.26% Government of India 2027 1,50,00,000 157.19 | 1,50,00,000 157.70
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
C 8.28% Government of India 2027 1,65,00,000 171.42 | 1,65,00,000 172.11
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
D 7.26% Government of India 2029 3,00,00,000 307.30 | 3,00,00,000 305.55
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
E  7.17% Government of India 2028 7,00,00,000 713.66 | 7,00,00,000 710.66
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
F  6.13% Government of India 2028 1,45,00,000 142,95 | 1,45,00,000 141.54
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
G 6.01% Government of India 2028 1,95,00,000 188.64 | 1,95,00,000 185.06
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
H 8.45% Andhra Pradesh State Development Loan 2028 5,00,000 5.29 5,00,000 5.31
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
| 6.57% Gujarat State Development Loan 2029 5,00,000 4.94 5,00,000 4.87
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
] 6.63% Gujarat State Development Loan 2029 10,00,000 9.71 10,00,000 9.57
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
K 6.90% Guijarat State Development Loan 2030 50,00,000 48.92 50,00,000 48.23
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
L 7.04% Gujarat State Development Loan 2030 5,00,000 4.94 5,00,000 4.87
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
M 7.10% Gujarat State Development Loan 2029 5,00,000 4,97 5,00,000 4.91
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
0
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Particulars No. of units | Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31 March | 31March | 31March
2024 2024 2023 2023

N  7.60% Gujarat State Development Loan 2029 5,00,000 5.16 5,00,000 512
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

O 8.05% Gujarat State Development Loan 2029 55,00,000 56.53 55,00,000 56.29
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

P 8.14% Gujarat State Development Loan 2029 1,05,00,000 109.47 | 1,05,00,000 109.07
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

Q 8.16% Gujarat State Development Loan 2029 10,00,000 10.43 10,00,000 10.40
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

R 8.23% Gujarat State Development Loan 2025 45,00,000 4576 45,00,000 46.11
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

S 8.25% Gujarat State Development Loan 2024 5,00,000 5.19
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

T  8.28% Gujarat State Development Loan 2029 50,00,000 52.24 50,00,000 52.10
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

U 8.35% Gujarat State Development Loan 2029 15,00,000 15.66 15,00,000 15.62
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

V  8.38% Gujarat State Development Loan 2029 5,00,000 5.23 5,00,000 522
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

W  8.53% Gujarat State Development Loan 2028 5,00,000 5.37 5,00,000 5.39
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

X 8.58% Gujarat State Development Loan 2028 20,00,000 21.61 20,00,000 21.69
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

Y  8.79% Gujarat State Development Loan 2028 25,00,000 26.40 25,00,000 26.53
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

Z 7.53% Haryana State Development Loan 2027 10,00,000 10.30 10,00,000 10.31
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

AA 8.08% Haryana State Development Loan 2025 25,00,000 25.68
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

AB 6.83% Karnataka State Development Loan 2031 28,78,700 28.52 28,78,700 28.00
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

AC 6.96% Karnataka State Development Loan 2031 25,00,000 25.28 25,00,000 24.85
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

AD 7.14% Karnataka State Development Loan 2029 45,00,000 45.39 45,00,000 4491
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

.-“:{:.:::.'::"‘;'-’-
'\ ==

; Q TN

b 4

y g

)



Corporate Overview Board & Management Reports Financial Statements

435

Integrated Annual Report 2023-24

Particulars No. of units | Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31 March | 31March | 31March
2024 2024 2023 2023
AE 7.15% Karnataka State Development Loan 2029 5,00,000 5.12 5,00,000 5.07
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AF 7.16% Karnataka State Development Loan 2030 30,00,000 30.21 30,00,000 29.85
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AG 7.20% Karnataka State Development Loan 2029 5,00,000 5.12 5,00,000 5.07
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AH 7.80% Karnataka State Development Loan 2030 5,00,000 5.28 5,00,000 5.24
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
Al 8.06% Karnataka State Development Loan 2029 10,00,000 10.28 10,00,000 10.24
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
Al 8.08% Karnataka State Development Loan 2028 25,00,000 26.20 25,00,000 26.22
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AK 8.16% Karnataka State Development Loan 2029 30,00,000 30.99 30,00,000 30.88
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AL 8.19% Karnataka State Development Loan 2029 90,00,000 94.16 90,00,000 93.86
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AM 8.27% Karnataka State Development Loan 2025 15,00,000 15.56 15,00,000 15.68
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AN 8.28% Karnataka State Development Loan 2029 26,00,000 27.38 26,00,000 27.31
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AO 8.30% Karnataka State Development Loan 2029 4,10,000 4.28 4,170,000 4.27
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AP 8.32% Karnataka State Development Loan 2029 20,00,000 20.98 20,00,000 20.93
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AQ 8.38% Karnataka State Development Loan 2026 15,00,000 15.48 15,00,000 15.62
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AR 8.52% Karnataka State Development Loan 2028 10,00,000 10.72 10,00,000 10.76
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AS 6.17% Kerala State Development Loan 2027 25,00,000 24.141 25,00,000 24.23
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AT 7.02% Kerala State Development Loan 2028 10,00,000 9.93 10,00,000 9.87
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
AU 8.00% Kerala State Development Loan 2028 5,00,000 5.29 5,00,000 5.29
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
Vol
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Particulars No. of units | Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31 March | 31March | 31March
2024 2024 2023 2023

AV 8.24% Kerala State Development Loan 2025 10,00,000 10.41 10,00,000 10.49
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

AW 6.55% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2028 25,00,000 24.99 25,00,000 24.77
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

AX 6.78% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2031 20,00,000 19.86 20,00,000 19.52
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

AY 6.81% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2028 50,00,000 50.61 50,00,000 50.25
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

AZ 7.17% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2029 25,00,000 25.62 25,00,000 25.36
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

BA 7.18% Maharashira State Development Loan 2029 40,00,000 40.42 40,00,000 40.02
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

BB 7.27% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2030 5,00,000 5.05 5,00,000 5.00
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

BC 7.60% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2030 20,00,000 20.90 20,00,000 20.70
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

BD 7.83% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2030 15,00,000 15.88 15,00,000 15.75
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

BE 8.04% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2025 5,00,000 511
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

BF 8.05% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2025 10,00,000 10.27
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

BG 8.06% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2025 25,00,000 25.61
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

BH 8.08% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2028 55,00,000 57.65 55,00,000 57.68
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

Bl 8.26% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2029 58,00,000 61.11 58,00,000 60.96
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

B] 9.24% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2024 10,00,000 10.33
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

BK 7.45% Rajasthan State Development Loan 2027 5,00,000 5.01 5,00,000 5.02
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

BL 8.17% Rajasthan State Development Loan 2029 5,00,000 5.22 5,00,000 5.20
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
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Particulars No. of units | Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31 March | 31March | 31March
2024 2024 2023 2023
BM 8.20% Rajasthan State Development Loan 2025 15,00,000 15.48 15,00,000 15.60
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BN 8.23% Rajasthan State Development Loan 2025 15,00,000 15.52 15,00,000 15.66
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BO 8.33% Rajasthan State Development Loan 2028 5,00,000 5.19 5,00,000 5.20
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BP 6.76% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2031 15,00,000 14.54 15,00,000 14.26
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BQ 6.90% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2031 10,00,000 10.09 10,00,000 9.91
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BR 6.97% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2031 10,00,000 9.92 10,00,000 9.75
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BS 7.02% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2031 5,00,000 4.99 5,00,000 4.91
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BT 7.11% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2029 75,00,000 75.06 75,00,000 74.29
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BU 7.17% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2029 5,00,000 5.08 5,00,000 5.02
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BV 7.18% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2027 5,00,000 5.03 5,00,000 5.04
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BW 7.24% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2032 25,00,000 25.16 25,00,000 24.76
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BX 7.28% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2029 20,00,000 20.28 20,00,000 20.10
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BY 8.05% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2028 20,00,000 21.18 20,00,000 21.20
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
BZ 8.08% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2028 55,00,000 57.65 55,00,000 57.68
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
CA 8.16% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2029 10,00,000 10.70 10,00,000 10.65
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
CB 8.37% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2029 10,00,000 10.45 10,00,000 10.42
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
CC 8.87% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2024 15,00,000 15.95
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
W
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Particulars No. of units Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31March | 31March | 31 March
2024 2024 2023 2023
CD 9.11% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2024 - - 10,00,000 10.50

Units of face value of ¥ 100 each

Sub-Total 3,538.51 3,632.68

b) Investments in debentures or bonds

i) Bonds (quoted) (fully paid) #

A Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 370 37.67 900 94.98
Units of face value of ¥ 10,00,000 each

B NTPC Limited 500 54.07 550 59.41
Units of face value of ¥ 10,00,000 each

C NHPC Limited 1,000 10.61 6,000 62.65

Units of face value of ¥ 1,00,000 each

D NHPC Limited - - 100 10.62

Units of face value of ¥ 10,00,000 each

E  Power Grid Corporation of India Limited - - 80 10.49

Units of face value of ¥ 12,50,000 each
Sub-Total 102.35 238.15

ii) Bonds (unquoted) (fully paid) ##
A 3.88% Bank of Baroda - - 2,27,500 194.66
Face value of USD 100 each

B 5.18% HDFC Bank 1,60,000 133.60
Units of face value of USD 100 each

C 3.25% EXIM Bank 80,000 60.50
Units of face value of USD 100 each

D 6.01% Bangladesh Bank 4 8.88 1 2.86

Units of face value of BDT 4,00,00,000 each

E 1.80% State Bank of India 3,17,500 263.58 3,17,500 258.69

Units of face value of USD 100 each

F  4.00% ICICI Bank 3,71,000 320.01 3,71,000 320.02
Units of face value of USD 100 each
G 5.00% State Bank of India 1,60,000 134.23

Units of face value of USD 100 each

H 4.79% State Bank of India - - 10,000 8.61

Units of face value of USD 100 each
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Particulars No. of units Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31March | 31March | 31 March
2024 2024 2023 2023
| 4.88% State Bank of India 97,320 83.94
Units of face value of USD 100 each
Sub-Total 920.80 868.78
iii) Non-convertible debentures (quoted) (fully paid) #
A Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited 25 27.03 25 27.20
Units of face value of ¥ 1,00,00,000 each
B Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited 500 25.36
Units of face value of ¥ 5,00,000 each
C  Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited 250 2712
Units of face value of ¥ 10,00,000 each
D LIC Housing Finance Limited 650 69.93 1,300 138.62
Units of face value of Z 10,00,000 each
Sub-Total 96.96 218.30
c) Investments in Target Maturity Funds ##
A ABSL Crisil SDL Plus AAA PSU Apr 2025 1,49,99,250 16.72 | 1,49,99,250 15.86
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
B Edelweiss NIFTY PSU Bond Plus SDL Apr 2027 50:50 | 10,66,49,064 119.70 | 10,66,49,064 111.24
Index Fund - Direct Plan Growth
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
C Axis CPSE Plus SDL 2025 70 : 30 Debt Index Fund | 3,96,88,066 44.48 | 3,96,88,066 42.24
Growth
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
D Edelweiss CRISIL PSU Plus SDL 50:50 Oct 2025 Index | 3,98,56,672 4475 | 3,98,56,672 42.40
Fund
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
E Edelweiss NIFTY PSU Bond Plus SDL Index Fund - | 17,53,95,457 209.70 | 17,53,95,457 197.70
2026
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
F HSBC CRISIL IBX 50:50 Gilt Plus SDL Apr 2028 Index 2,51,73,978 28.12 | 2,51,73,978 26.22
Fund - Direct - Growth
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
G ICICI Prudential Nifty PSU Bond Plus SDL Sep 2027 | 4,84,37,803 54.44 | 4,84,37,803 50.80
40:60 Index Fund
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
H Kotak Nifty SDL APR 2027 top 12 Equal Weight Index |  3,68,36,312 40.88 | 3,68,36,312 38.07
Fund Direct Plan - Growth
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
I Nippon India Nifty AAA CPSE Bond Plus SDL - Apr | 3,40,95,736 37.66 | 3,40,95,736 35.05
2027 Maturity 60:40 Index Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
Option
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
Wiy
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Particulars No. of units Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2024 2024 2023 2023
J SBI CPSE Bond Plus SDL Sep 2026 50:50 Index Fund 32,76,355 3.67 32,76,355 3.44
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
Sub Total 600.12 563.02
Total 5,258.76 5,520.95

* Investment in joint venture is measured as per equity method in accordance with Ind AS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’
# All these investments (being strategic in nature) are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI').

## These are measured at amortised cost
USD - United States Dollar

Notes:

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

10.

a. Aggregate of quoted investments - at cost 4,428.62 4,473.20
b. Aggregate of quoted investments - at market value 4,337.94 4,652.16
c. Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - at cost 927.81 888.85
d. Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments
9. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security deposits 19.59 24.46
Bank deposit with more than 12 months maturity # * 1.24 5.93
Total 20.83 30.39
# Includes deposits pledged as security with electricity/water department/ 0.83 0.82
government authorities
* Includes interest accrued but not due 0.06 0.09
NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Advance income tax (net) 4.45 4.49
Total 4.45 4.49
11. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capital advances 9.48 20.86
Advances other than capital advances
Amalgamation adjustment account 18.07
Balance with government authorities
Considered good 88.66 46.94
Considered doubitful 0.01 0.01
Total 98.15 85.88
Less: Allowance for impairment (0.01) (0.01)
Total 98.14 85.87
Vol
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Particulars 31 March 2024| 31 March 2023
Raw materials 605.85 635.72
Packing materials 322.48 326.16
Work-in-progress 130.70 159.16
Finished goods 464.57 520.23
Stock-intrade (acquired for trading) 386.55 356.52
Stock-intrade (acquired for trading)-intransit 26.40 21.26
Stores and spares 10.42 5.15
Total 1,946.97 2,024.20

“Inventories have been hypothecated with banks in consortium against working capital loan, refer note 27 for details.

*Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value on account of slow moving and obsolete items amounted to X 18.10 crores (31 March
2023 : % 18.33 crores). Further, reversal of write-downs of inventories to net realisable value on account of slow moving and obsolete items
amounted to X 11.61 crores (31 March 2023 : % 07.34 crores). These were recognized as an expense/reversal of expense respectively
during the year and were included in ‘changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-frade and work-in-progress’ in Consolidated

Statement of Profit and Loss.

CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars No. of units Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31 March | 31 March |31 March
2024 2024 2023 2023
a) Mutual funds (quoted) (fully paid) *
A Nippon India Liquid Fund - Direct Growth Plan 27,451 16.22 25,483 14.03
Units of face value of ¥ 1,000 each
Kotak Liquid - Growth - Direct 1,71,366 83.61 -
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
SBI Long Duration Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 88,50,682 10.04 -
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
Invesco India Gilt Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 35,487 10.05 -
Units of face value of ¥ 1,000 each
HDFC Long Duration Debt Fund - Growth Option -| 1,79,21,054 20.11 -
Direct Plan
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
Mirae Asset Arbitrage Fund Direct Growth 1,63,03,090 20.06 -
Units of face value of ¥ 1,000 each
Invesco India Arbitrage Fund - Direct Growth Plan 17,58,06,792 551.53 | 5,48,33,022 158.77
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
Vol
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Particulars No. of units | Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31 March | 31 March |31 March
2024 2024 2023 2023
H UTI Arbitrage Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 60,90,445 20.66
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
| Edelweiss Multi Asset Allocation Fund - Direct Plan - Growth | 2,42,88,928 25.69
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
] Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund - Growth - Direct 2,12,31,800 77.25
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
K ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct Growth Plan 2,80,163 10.01
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
L DSP Arbitrage Fund - Direct - Growth 5,49,32,710 78.31 7,68,719 1.01
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
M Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Growth - Direct Plan - 8,13,706 29.55
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
N HDFC Low Duration Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 10,48,760 21.16 5,33,005 2.62
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
O Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund - Growth 14,63,412 5.02
Units of face value of ¥ 10 each
Sub Total 949.72 205.98
b) Investments in State Development Loans (quoted)
(fully paid) #
A 8.04% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2025 5,00,000 5.08
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
B 8.05% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2025 10,00,000 10.21
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
C 8.06% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2025 25,00,000 25.45
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
D 8.08% Haryana State Development Loan 2025 25,00,000 25.52
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
E 8.25% Gujarat State Development Loan 2024 5,00,000 5.15
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
F 8.87% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2024 15,00,000 15.74
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
G 9.11% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2024 10,00,000 10.34
Units of face value of ¥ 100 each
Sub Total 97.49
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Particulars No. of units | Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31 March | 31 March |31 March
2024 2024 2023 2023
c) Investments in debentures or bonds
i) Bonds (quoted)(fully paid) #
A NTPC Limited 50 5.27
Units of face value of ¥ 10,00,000 each
B NHPC Limited 5,000 51.89
Units of face value of ¥ 1,00,000 each
C Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 500 51.34
Units of face value of ¥ 10,00,000 each
D Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 80 10.35
Units of face value of ¥ 12,50,000 each
Sub Total 118.85
ii) Bonds (unquoted) (fully paid) ##
A 3.88% Bank of Baroda 2,00,000 170.62
Units of face value of USD 100 each
B 4.79% State Bank of India 1,00,000 8.53
Units of face value of USD 10 each
C 4.88% State Bank of India 9,73,200 83.06
Units of face value of USD 10 each
D 3.88% Canara Bank - 4,01,000 335.20
Units of face value of USD 100 each
E 4.38% State Bank of India - 39,000 32.87
Units of face value of USD 100 each
F 4.50% State Bank of India - 20,000 16.69
Units of face value of USD 100 each
Sub Total 262.21 384.76
iii) Non-convertible debentures (quoted) (fully paid)#
A Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited 250 26.86
Units of face value of ¥ 10,00,000 each
B Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited 500 25.24
Units of face value of ¥ 5,00,000 each
C LIC Housing Finance Limited 650 68.19
Units of face value of ¥ 10,00,000 each
Sub Total 120.29
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Particulars No. of units | Amount | No. of units | Amount
31 March 31 March | 31 March |31 March
2024 2024 2023 2023
c) Treasury Bills (unquoted) ## 118.04 76.56
d) Investments in Marke t Linked Debentures (quoted)##

A Axis Finance - - 403 48.64
Units of face value of ¥ 10,00,000 each

B HDB Financial - - 170 20.53
Units of face value of ¥ 10,00,000 each

Sub Total 69.17

Total 1,666.60 736.47

* These are measured at fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’)
#All these investments (being strategic in nature) are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’)

## These are measured at amortised cost

Note:

Particulars 31 March 2024| 31 March 2023
a. Aggregate of quoted investments - at cost 1,248.04 271.92
b. Aggregate of quoted investments - at market value 1,286.35 275.15
c. Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - at cost 380.25 462.83
d. Aggregate amount of provision for impairment in value of investments

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES*

Unsecured, considered good 898.72 848.75
Unsecured, credit impaired 35.35 27.28
Sub-Total 934.07 876.03
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (35.35) (27.28)
Total 898.72 848.75

*Trade receivables have been hypothecated with banks in consortium against working capital loan, refer note 27 for details. Refer note
53B for related parties details.

AGEING SCHEDULE OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 March 2024 Outstanding from the due date of payment

Not | Lessthan |6 months| 12 | 2-3 |More than| Total

due |6 months| -1year | years |years| 3years
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good | 617.29 | 235.98 16.41| 11.78 | 2.42 14.84 | 898.72
Undisputed trade receivables — which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired 0.70 3.23| 8.05| 3.46 19.91| 35.35
Disputed trade receivables — considered good - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables — which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -

0
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Outstanding from the due date of payment

Not |Lessthan |6 months| 12 | 2-3 | More than | Total
due |6 months | -1year | years |years| 3years
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good | 524.99 | 295.95 23.65| 1.90| 0.43 1.83| 848.75
Undisputed trade receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired 1.87 2.80| 3.42| 8.80 10.39| 27.28

Disputed trade receivables — considered good

Disputed trade receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk

Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars 31 March 2024| 31 March 2023
Balances with banks in current accounts 148.53 104.76
Cheques, drafts on hand 91.55 7.40
Cash on hand 0.92 0.83
Term deposit with original maturity less than 3 months # 6.60 33.83
Total 247.60 146.82
#Includes deposits pledged as security with electricity/water department/ 0.01 0.01

government authorities.
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Term deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months # * 410.39 169.96
Unpaid dividend account ** 8.37 9.14
Total 418.76 179.10
#Includes deposits pledged as security with electricity/water department/ 1.48 1.48

government authorities
* Includes interest accrued but not due 0.50 0.11
**These balances are exclusive of disputed unpaid dividend and are not available for use by the Group. The corresponding balance is

disclosed as unclaimed dividend in note 30.
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security deposits

Considered good 13.75 14.31

Credit impaired 0.08 0.08
Sub Total 13.83 14.39
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (0.08) (0.08)
Sub Total 13.75 14.31
Other receivables 28.76 14.66
Total 42.51 28.97
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18. CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Particulars 31 March 2024| 31 March 2023
Advance income taxes (net) 0.08 6.43
Total 0.08 6.43

19. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Advances to suppliers
Considered good 153.40 43.66
Considered doubtful - 1.27
153.40 44.93
Less: Allowance for impairment - (1.27)
Sub-Total 153.40 43.66
Prepaid expenses 17.39 18.25
Advance to employees 44.73 32.49
Loans to employees 0.39 0.52
Balance with statutory / government authorities 239.09 171.79
Other advances 3.38 11.51
Sub-Total 304.98 234.56
Total 458.38 278.22

20. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

2,07,00,00,000 (31 March 2023: 2,07,00,00,000) equity shares of ¥ 1.00 each 207.00 207.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

1,77,20,39,162 (31 March 2023: 1,77,17,63,464) equity shares of ¥ 1.00 each 177.20 177.18

a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Number of shares| Amount | Number of shares | Amount

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,77,17,63,464 177.18 1,76,78,56,483| 176.79

Add: Shares issued on exercise of employee stock 2,75,698 0.03 39,064,981 0.39

option plan (ESOP)

Balance as at the end of the year 1,77,20,39,162| 177.20 1,77,17,63,464| 177.18
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b) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Holding Company has only 